FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING COURTHOUSE ANNEX, COMMISSION MEETING ROOM FEBRUARY 02, 2021 9:00 AM MINUTES

Commissioners Present: Ricky Jones-Chairman, Bert Boldt, II-Vice Chairman, Joseph Parrish, and Jessica V. Ward **Commissioners Present Via Zoom:** Noah Lockley **Others Present:** Michele Maxwell-Clerk of Court, Michael Shuler-County Attorney, Michael Moron-County Coordinator, and Jessica Gay-Deputy Clerk to the Board

Call to Order

Chair Jones called the meeting to order.

Prayer and Pledge

Commissioner Boldt said a prayer followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

Commissioner Lockley joined the meeting via Zoom.

Approval of Minutes

A. January 19, 2021 Regular Meeting

On motion by Commissioner Boldt, seconded by Commissioner Ward, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, it was agreed to approve the minutes from the meeting held on January 19, 2021. Motion carried 4-0.

Payment of County Bills

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, it was agreed to approve payment of the County Bills. Motion carried 4-0.

Public Comments

There were no public comments.

Department Directors Report

Superintendent of Public Works - Howard Nabors

A. Informational Item

1. Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District Report (Agenda Packet)

Mr. Nabors gave a brief update to the Board regarding the water issue. Commissioner Boldt confirmed a conversation he had with Mr. Nabors regarding radar enforced signs to be distributed throughout the county. Mr. Nabors said he had received a quote for the signs at \$20 each. Mr. Nabors noted he had obtained a quote for the electronic signs which are solar powered at \$3,830 each.

Mr. Moron and Mr. Nabors informed the Board that the County was contacted by the City of Apalachicola to assist with drainage issue on Squire Road, the property being right inside the airport fence. Mr. Nabors said the road department should be able to assist and remedy the issue.

Commissioner Ward noted that we do have a stormwater problem in our County. Commissioner Ward asked that Mrs. Griffith look into the grant that Governor DeSantis recently approved that could possibly be used to address stormwater issues.

Solid Waste Director – Fonda Davis

A. Informational Item

1. Right-of-Way Debris Pickup/Recycle Material Hauled Report (Agenda Packet).

Mr. Davis reported the landfill had 234 customers on amnesty day. Mr. Davis's staff is working to remedy the lighting issue at the basketball court, and he has requested a quote for resurfacing the court. Mr. Davis reported his staff is preparing the baseball fields for the upcoming season. Mr. Davis noted that animal control is currently running smoothly.

Emergency Management Director - Pam Brownell

A. Action Item

1. Request the Board adopt and sign the attached resolution for the County Approved Local Mitigation Strategy (LMS).

RESOLUTION

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

FRANKLIN COUNTY

WHEREAS, the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners created a Local Mitigation Strategy Task Force comprised of county, municipal representatives, private citizens, local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, and agencies having authority to regulate development including businesses and other private and non-profit interests; and

WHEREAS, the Board charged the Task Force with the responsibility to assess the hazards facing the county and to identify the initiatives designed to reduce the impacts of those hazards; and

WHEREAS, the Task Force has completed the hazard assessment and has identified numerous initiatives designed to reduce the impact of future disasters; and

WHEREAS, the Task Force has incorporated their finding and recommendations into the Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy; and

WHEREAS, the Board is committed to reducing the impact of hazard for all county residents; and

WHEREAS, The Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy supports hazard mitigation throughout the entire county.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board adopts the Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy to reflect the current need and citizens desire to identify and implement hazard mitigation initiatives that will reduce the county's susceptibility to numerous hazards. And, at the appropriate time, the Board will develop and submit funding proposals to appropriate agencies to implement the hazard mitigation initiatives identified in the Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy.

THIS RESOLUTION adopted this 2nd day of February 2021.

Franklin County Board of County Commissioners Franklin County, Florida

<u>/s/Ricky Jones</u>

Ricky Jones, Chairman

/s/Michele Maxwell

Michele Maxwell, Clerk of Court

On motion by Commissioner Boldt, seconded by Commissioner Ward, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, it was agreed to approve the adoption of the resolution for the County Approved Local Mitigation Strategy (LMS). Motion carried 4-0.

Mr. Moron presented the following item from his report.

3. New EOC Building: The Board has been discussing the need for a new EOC since Hurricane Michael. During the last legislative session, the County received approximately \$100,000 for design and engineering of a new EOC, which was decided at a previous meeting, would be located at the airport. Attached (Agenda Packet) to my report is a 4,884 square foot floor plan concept for the new EOC. Discussed at the last meeting, the project architect estimates a cost of \$300 per square foot for total building cost of \$1,465,200.00. This cost does not include other expenses such as office furniture, IT equipment, a generator, site work, parking area, stormwater, water and sewer hook ups, etc. Before proceeding with the actual design, Dewberry, the project engineers, would like the Board to agree to a final concept and square footage.

The Board, Mr. Moron, Mr. Pierce, and Mrs. Brownell discussed the proposed plans for the new EOC building. Mrs. Brownell noted that we have already cut our plan down three times. Mrs. Brownell said the plan was to use the current building for bunk rooms. Mrs. Brownell said the cost for a new generator was added into the mitigation project. The plan is to leave the current generator on the old building to be used as a bunkhouse. Commissioner Lockley said he would like to make sure that we have room to expand. Mr. Moron said the plans have been designed so that the exit door could be used as a hallway in the event an addition is constructed in the future.

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board agreed to move forward with the design of the new EOC building with considerations as discussed. Motion carried 4-0.

B. Informational Items

1. Franklin County has received a waiver for our match portion from Hurricane Hermine.

2. EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work with FDEM and FEMA. Franklin County has two projects for Hurricane Sally.

3. Amanda Anthony and Jennifer Daniels passed the All Hazards Events class online with Texas A&M University on 01/28/21. Pamela Brownell is scheduled for the February Class.

4. Amanda Anthony attended and passed her G-300 Class 01/19/21 - 01/21/21.

5. EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & reusable cloth mask throughout our community. We have partnered with the City of Carrabelle and City of Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George Island & Eastpoint Visitor Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and residents. We will continue this effort as long as supplies are available.

6. EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus. This includes hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff's Dept. Weems, EMS, as needed. We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution from DOH via Alert Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website.

7. EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, FEMA, etc. regarding COVID 19. We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State of Emergency and SitReps.

8. EOC Staff continue to work on FEMA reimbursement claims from Hurricane Michael. This includes working with FEMA staff regarding mitigation of damaged parks, roads, etc. Mitigation takes some time but EOC Staff continue to work diligently with FEMA Staff on the most beneficial repairs for Franklin County. We are in contact with our PDMG regularly regarding these projects and will update the Board as soon as the State Review is completed. EOC Staff has also began the FEMA reimbursement claim process for COVID-19 and Hurricane Sally.

9. Attached is a copy of the DOH Dashboard regarding COVID-19 Cases in Franklin County as of 1/28/21 at 3:00 PM.

Extension Office Director - Erik Lovestrand

A. Informational Items

Mr. Lovestrand informed the Board that he is working in conjunction with FWC to remove derelict vessels left banked on the shoreline from Hurricane Michael. Commissioner Boldt stated that there is a sailboat banked on the shoreline in St. Teresa and he will reach out to Mr. Lovestrand to give him the location.

General Extension Activities:

1. During this period, the Extension office assisted citizens on the topics of identifying issues with coastal live oaks, soil sampling for pH test, injured wildlife assistance, and more.

2. Extension Director participated in NW Extension district County Director virtual meeting to plan for 2021.

3. Extension Director participated as a judge for the ABC School-wide spelling bee.

4. Extension Staff assisted a UF student who received an internship during this past semester. As part of her requirements, she needed to interview staff in an Extension office to learn about the role of Extension and responsibilities of various Extension faculty and staff. The interview was conducted virtually, using a video conferencing application.

Sea Grant Extension:

5. Extension Director assisted UF's molluscan shellfish specialist during 2 days of field work on Wakulla and Franklin County oyster aquaculture leases. Four cooperating growers are participating in a study to compare growth and survival of triploid oysters from two different parental lines (Louisiana and Florida Broodstock). Temperature loggers have also been placed in growing bags to assess potential stressors that may be correlated with mortality events.

6. Extension Director coordinated with Bay and Gulf Extension faculty to plan for this year's volunteer Scallop Sitter program (FWC funded project to restore bay scallops in the Florida Panhandle)

4-H Youth Development:

7. Public speaking contest is underway in local schools, in preparation for the countywide contest. Competition will take place virtually with students recording their speech and submitting a YouTube video for the judges. County contest has a due date of February 12 for video uploads. Winners will be announced shortly thereafter.

Family and Consumer Sciences:

8. Family Nutrition Program assistant continues to conduct in-person lessons in local schools, with required safety measures in place.

Agriculture/Home Horticulture:

9. Planning is underway for a 2021 Master Gardener course to be offered in the County.

Library Director - Whitney Roundtree

A. Informational Items

1. On Saturday, January 23<u>rd</u>, the Friends of the Franklin County Public hosted their annual soup, bread, and book sale fundraiser at the Eastpoint Branch. Thank you to the volunteers and all who attended for their continued support of the libraries. The event will be held again at the Carrabelle Branch on Saturday, February 20<u>th</u> at 10:00 AM.

2. A PT employee of the Carrabelle Branch has resigned due to health issues. Since the applicant pool was still fresh and of good quality, I reached out to the previous applicants to see if they would be interested in the position. I reinterviewed applicants and an offer has been extended to a qualified candidate contingent upon successfully passing pre-employment drug screening and background check.

3. Program Attendance:

Eastpoint Branch:

Story Time- 9 total Anime Club- 4 Book Chat – 6 Writer's Forum- 5 Diabetes Awareness -1

Carrabelle Branch:

Book Chat- 4 Anime Club- 3 Makerspace- 3 Story Time- 0

4. Upcoming Events:

Eastpoint Branch:

Diabetes Awareness- First Tuesday of the month at 10:00 AM. Book Chat- First Tuesday of the month at 1:30 PM Story Time- 2<u>nd</u> and 4<u>th</u> Tuesday of the month at 3:30 PM. Anime Club- 2<u>nd</u> Thursday of the month at 4:00 PM. Writer's Forum- Third Wednesday of the month at 1:00 PM.

FCBCC REGULAR MEETING February 2, 2021 Page **6** of **15**

Carrabelle Branch:

Book Chat- First Friday of the month at 1:30 PM. Anime Club- $2\underline{nd}$ Tuesday of the month at 4:00 PM. Story Time- $2\underline{nd}$ and $4\underline{th}$ Wednesdays of the month at 3:30 P.M. Makerspace- Third Thursday of month at 4:00 PM.

Commissioner Lockley inquired about hiring without Board approval. Mr. Moron said Ms. Roundtree had contacted him and he told her to draw from the current pool of applicants since it had been less than six months.

Airport Manager -- Jason Puckett -- Report

A. Informational Items

1. The airport is fully operational with no issues to report at this time. I wanted to take a quick moment and say a big thank you for the equipment purchase that was approved last meeting. We should be receiving the much needed new Zero-Turn mower and new Gator XUV at any time now. This new equipment will be kept in the hangar adjacent to Centric Aviation.

2. There is a FDOT grant that will be available in August, 2021 to purchase a new larger tractor and implements for the major mowing at the airport. I am attempting to secure funding for an equipment shed/enclosure so old and new equipment can be kept out of the elements etc...

3. Please find below an update on the current projects. There are fewer than normal projects ongoing right now since we completed and closed several grants last year and the FDOT removed the FY2021 funding due to COVID impacts to the state budgets.

A. Runway 6-24 Electrical Improvements: The construction contact has been executed and the contractor is scheduled to start work soon. This work includes the complete replacement of the Runway 6-24 edge lighting system.

B. Fuel Farm Replacement: The County received TRIUMPH grant funds to replace the aged fuel farm and design with AVCON will begin as soon as the design task order is approved by TRIUMPH. This project will evaluate three potential fuel farm locations to assist the County in selecting the ultimate location, two new 12,000-gallon tanks, entirely new fuel system, and self-serve card reader.

C. Apron Rehabilitation: The County has an FDOT grant to rehabilitate the apron pavement in front of the FBO and along the east and west aprons. As part of this project, the FAA and FDOT are requesting AVCON prepare an apron utilization study which will evaluate the current and future uses of the apron to confirm that all of the apron pavement is justified for federal and state funding.

4. I am proud of our airport and the economic impact that it provides to Franklin County. We have a respected name in the aviation community and that speaks volumes to the hard work of all involved to make the airport the best it can be.

Mrs. Griffith presented the following item from his report.

4. Acceptance of Task Order for Airport Fuel Farm Project (Moved from Fiscal Manager/Grants Coordinator)

Early last week, AVCON's Task Order #7 for the planning, design, bidding and construction phase services for the Airport Fuel Farm Project was submitted to

FCBCC REGULAR MEETING February 2, 2021 Page **7** of **15**

Triumph for their approval. Franklin County received notification late yesterday that the Task Order had been approved. Once this Board authorizes the acceptance of AVCON's Task Order #7, the design work will take about 90 days to complete and then the county can proceed with advertising for construction. The total cost of this project is estimated to be \$1,084,000 with Triumph funding \$1,059,000 and \$25,000 being paid by the Airport Fund. This project should be on track for completion by June 30<u>th</u>, 2021.

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, to authorize the acceptance of AVCON's Task Order #7 for the Airport Fuel Farm Project. Motion carried 4-0.

CARES Act Consultant -- Traci Buzbee -- Update

A. Informational Items

1. After FDEM questioned the submitted payroll documents, we received additional documentation from the sheriff's office to correct the Phase 1&2 submittal and the Phase 3 request for reimbursement.

2. We worked with our liaison last week and submitted the revised request for validation (Phase 1 & 2)

3. We submitted the revised Phase 3 on Monday and had discussions with our FDEM liaison.

4. We submitted the letter for an extension of the 2020 funds and have until Friday to submit a spend plan. At this time, we do not think we will need the extension, but we will determine that by Thursday once the state has reviewed the RFR we submitted today. FCSO also submitted additional documents that even if there is a question on some of the salaries that we submitted, we still have additional documents that we can compile and submit for the full allocation.

5. Phase 1 & 2 - \$952,074 (previously received). Phase 3 - \$1,163,645 currently under review at the state. Total \$2,115,720.

6. Funds spent to date as of 12-30-20 -- \$910,023.26 (unsure if checks have been written in January).

7. Outstanding CARES expenses to be paid once you receive the rest of the funds:

LCSO - Deese Elite \$62,558

LCSO – CAD system \$224,835

Carrabelle Public Safety Employees - \$250,663.02

Apalachicola Public Safety Employees - \$393,093.85

Remaining balance after the above expenses are paid: \$274,546.87

Mr. Moron presented the following item from his report.

8. CARES Act Funds Extension Letter (Moved from County Coordinator)

During Ms. Traci Buzbee's report, the need for the County to request an extension of the agreement (Agreement Y2314) between Franklin County Board of County Commissioners and the Florida Division of Emergency Management for the CARES

FCBCC REGULAR MEETING February 2, 2021 Page **8** of **15**

Act funding beyond the January 29<u>th</u>deadline was addressed. This extension allowed Ms. Buzbee to submit a revised spend plan on Friday, February 5<u>th</u>. Chairman Jones signed the extension request.

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, to ratify the Chairman's signature on the CARES Act extension letter. Motion carried 4-0.

ARPC -- Evan Blythe & Josh Adams -- Presentation

A. Mr. Blythe and Mr. Adams will present their findings on the Alligator Point Resiliency Study Presentation.

Mr. Blythe provided a PowerPoint presentation to the Board. The PowerPoint included the following highlights.

Project background: County awarded grants from the Florida Resilient Coastlines Program and Northern Gulf of Mexico Sentinel Site Cooperative

Issues/Assets: Flooding, chronic and acute erosion

Potential Management Strategies: "Hold the Line" (build seawall); "Feed the System" (add sand); "Avoid the Danger Zone" (relocate and/or elevate roadway); "Add Buffering Capacity" (build significant dune system; "Reduce Wave Energy" (offshore breakwaters to reduce wave energy and capture sediments; "Soft Repairs" (low cost and temporary repair road with gravel, providing limited access to vehicles, 4-wheel drive)

Chairman Jones called for a short recess at 10:25 a.m. and resumed the meeting at 10:42 a.m.

<u>Clerk of Courts - Michele Maxwell - Report</u>

Clerk Maxwell did not have a report for the Board.

Fiscal Manager/Grants Coordinator - Erin Griffith - Report

A. Action Items

1. Summary of January 29<u>th</u> Conference Call with US Treasury Regarding RESTORE Projects and authorization to accept planning grant once awarded

Chairman Ricky Jones, Alan Pierce, and I joined Melissa Beaudry and Heather Pullen, Langton Consulting, for an hour long conference call with the new Bureau Chief, Ms. Maureen Klover of the US Treasury RESTORE program. Ms. Klover initiated the call because she wanted to hear from local governments on what needed to be improved in the RESTORE program to make it more responsive to the recipients.

Alan started off the call with a short history of Franklin County's efforts to get projects through the RESTORE system. Ms. Klover seemed receptive to the comments and is working to respond to the requests to Treasury below:

A. Permission for Franklin County to begin advertising for planning consultants on the dune restoration project and the St. George Island Stormwater project while Treasury finishes the review of various documents that Langton will be submitting. If Treasury

will allow Franklin County to advertise while they are reviewing documents this will save one month's time.

B. Permission to submit an amendment to the MYIP (Multi-Year Implementation Plan) for construction funds while the Planning grant is being utilized. If allowed by Treasury, this will save months of waiting for Treasury to approve funds that have already been authorized for Franklin County.

C. Permission to make Budget amendments between the two construction grants at a staff level without having to get a full MYIP amendment. If Treasury allows for the staff level approval, then the Board would have latitude to make budget amendments based upon what is in the best interest of the county without going through a full Treasury approval process.

Ms. Klover is checking with her superiors at Treasury regarding the requests above and will let Franklin County know answers as soon as possible. In the event the County receives the go ahead and the planning grant is formally approved by Treasury.

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board authorized the Chairman to accept the Planning Grant, and authorized the advertising for planning consultants; Motion carried 4-0.

2. Extension of FEMA Funded Recovery Professional Services Agreement

In late 2017, Franklin County solicited an RFQ for engineering services relative to FEMA Funded Recovery Efforts. Franklin County entered into an agreement with Dewberry Engineers to provide this service in February of 2018. The agreement allowed for two (2) year continuing services contract extensions from the date of signature with an option of renewals for up to (5) years total. A draft letter of authorization to extend the agreement as well as a copy of the original agreement and RFQ is attached to this report.

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board authorized the extension of the professional services agreement for the additional two year term and authorized the Chairman to sign the letter of authorization. Motion carried 4-0.

3. Island View Park - FEMA Funded Recovery Task Order

Island View Park opened as a new park in August of 2018. Just two months later, Hurricane Michael devastated the area and the park was almost completely destroyed. The construction of this park was handled directly by the various state agencies and upon completion Franklin County was responsible for the maintenance and operation of the park. After Hurricane Michael, the original contractor who did the project, Woods Partners Inc., assisted with the development of the damage descriptions and cost assessment for the FEMA restoration project. The total estimated project cost for the restoration is \$1,325,471. Included in the cost estimate is approximately \$421,000 in mitigation work which will make the park more resilient to damage from future storms. A copy of the project scope which outlines the damages and mitigation work is attached.

Dewberry Engineers has submitted a Task Order in the amount of \$144,476 to do the necessary design, permitting work, draft bid specifications, construction administration and inspection services to see the project to completion. This proposal is consistent with the FEMA cost curve specification for this type of project.

On motion by Commissioner Boldt, seconded by Commissioner Ward, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board authorized the acceptance of Dewberry's Task Order #7 for the Island View Park restoration project.

Commissioner Boldt requested a visual of the renovations. Mr. Alan Pierce gave an overview of the items funded by FEMA and how the County is responsible for 12.5%. Commissioner Parrish stated he had heard that the State was not going to pay their 12.5%. Mr. Pierce said he had already received confirmation of intent from the State and had not heard anything about them not covering their 12.5%. Commissioner Boldt and Commissioner Parrish reiterated the importance of the reserved funds.

Motion carried 4-0.

4. Acceptance of Task Order for Airport Fuel Farm Project

Early last week, AVCON's Task Order #7 for the planning, design, bidding and construction phase services for the Airport Fuel Farm Project was submitted to Triumph for their approval. Franklin County received notification late yesterday that the Task Order had been approved. Once this Board authorizes the acceptance of AVCON's Task Order #7, the design work will take about 90 days to complete and then the county can proceed with advertising for construction. The total cost of this project is estimated to be \$1,084,000 with Triumph funding \$1,059,000 and \$25,000 being paid by the Airport Fund. This project should be on track for completion by June 30<u>th</u>, 2021.

Item previously addressed under Airport Manager –Jason Puckett - Report

5. Employee Job Classification and Pay Plan Study

At the first meeting in January, the Board expressed interest in the development of a job classification and pay plan for County employees. After doing some research, I have found a firm in Tallahassee that is an industry expert in the field. Evergreen Solutions, LLC has performed over 600 of these type of studies for numerous governmental agencies in 46 states including the job classification and pay plan for Gulf County and is currently working on projects with Wakulla and Leon counties. Evergreen's services may be of interest as data is used from peer organizations within a region to compare pay and benefits. Evergreen can also offer suggestions of phased implementation of a pay plan to fit within budgetary constraints.

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, it was agreed to have a representative from Evergreen Solutions, LLC, attend the next Board meeting to give a brief synopsis of the process, objectives, outcomes, estimate of cost and answer any questions that the Board may have.

Commissioner Ward noted that she had read over Melbourne County's report and a lot of the items in the report are items that constituents have reached out to her about.

Motion carried 4-0.

B. Informational Item

1. Advertisement for Alligator Drive Hurricane Damage Repairs

The bid solicitation for the Alligator Drive Hurricane Damage Repairs was in the newspaper last week and posted on the county website. The project includes 1,250 linear feet of new roadway construction, sheetpile walls with concrete cap, concrete shoulder, water line replacement, striping, stormwater, debris removal, and grassing along Alligator Drive (CR 370) beginning around Tom Roberts Road and ending around George Vause Road. Bids can be submitted to the Clerk's Office through 4:30 p.m. on March 1<u>st</u>and will be opened at the March 2<u>nd</u> commission meeting. The bid solicitation is attached.

Commissioner Ward would like Mrs. Griffith to look into an available grant through Homeland Security for fire prevention and safety noting Josh Gable as a contact for Senator Marc Rubio's office.

County Coordinator - Michael Morón - Report

A. Action Items

1. Duck Hunting Update: At a recent meeting, the Board discussed complaints received regarding the influx of out of area duck hunter's destruction of local resources such as the recently revived grass beds, the illegal practice of exceeding the allowed bag limits, and the total disregard of local duck hunting customs. Instead of sending a letter, I contacted the department directly and spoke to Mr. George Warthen, FWC's Director of Hunting and Game Management, about the Board concerns. After meeting with his regional director and staff, Mr. Warthen explained that FWC officers do have access to the shallow water and are doing target enforcement on duck hunters. They are watchful to ensure no natural resources are being destroyed by any of the hunters. He also explained that this is a state-wide problem, and FWC is looking for a long-term solution to hunting issues. In addition, there is an amendment that will be presented to the FWC Commission at this month's meeting that will create a "buffer zone" between hunting and residential areas. What presents an issue for the agency is dealing with the confrontational problems between the local and out of town hunters, but the officers will continue to educate all hunters in order to try and reduce the confrontations. Mr. Warthen is willing to meet with any Commissioner, including going out on the water, to discuss these and other FWC concerns.

Chairman Jones requested an update regarding the buffer zone at the next meeting.

2. Vaccine Distribution Update: At your last meeting the Board discussed vaccine distribution issues in the County and directed me to send a letter to Governor DeSantis requesting additional vaccine units on a weekly basis, but a lot has transpired state-wide regarding additional vaccine doses since that meeting. Of significance, is the Small County Coalition's (SCC) executive meeting held to address some of the same concerns raised by this Board at the last meeting. Attached is the SCC's Executive Summary on Vaccine Program Observations and Suggestions Zoom meeting held on January 21st. Last week SCC's President, Chris Doolin, discussed how the Board's concerns aligned and how the Board could support SCC in its efforts to secure additional vaccines for small rural counties like Franklin, especially those that are fiscally constrained. Mr. Doolin agreed to word a draft letter, which is attached to this report, the County could send to FDEM Director Mr. Jared Moskowitz supporting SCC and the Florida Association of Counties efforts to secure an equitable allotment of vaccines in Franklin County.

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Ward, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board authorized the Chairman's signature on the letter to (FDEM) Director Moskowitz. Motion carried 4-0.

The Board discussed shot hunting, vaccination screening and vaccination distribution. On a related COVID matter, since the beginning of January 2021, COVID positivity trends in Franklin County have been above the recommended 10%, which represents significant community spread and increased exposure to our most vulnerable populations. The first two weeks of January 2021 reported a 20% positivity trend, with 155 new positive cases out of 761 people tested. From January 15<u>th</u> through January 28<u>th</u> positivity trends are still above the recommended benchmark at 16% with 118 new cases. There have been 5 new COVID-19 documented deaths which totals 10 deaths in the County. Positivity trends and COVID-19 documented deaths are monitored using Florida Department of Health data. I provide this information to the Board and public so that everyone continues to follow the CDC guidelines of washing your hands, avoiding large crowds especially inside buildings and poorly ventilated areas, and wearing a mask whenever you are out in public.

3. New EOC Building: The Board has been discussing the need for a new EOC since Hurricane Michael. During the last legislative session, the County received approximately \$100,000 for design and engineering of a new EOC, which was decided at a previous meeting, would be located at the airport. Attached (Agenda Packet) to my report is a 4,884 square foot floor plan concept for the new EOC. Discussed at the last meeting, the project architect estimates a cost of \$300 per square foot for total building cost of \$1,465,200.00. This cost does not include other expenses such as office furniture, IT equipment, a generator, site work, parking area, stormwater, water and sewer hook ups, etc. Before proceeding with the actual design, Dewberry, the project engineers, would like the Board to agree to a final concept and square footage.

Item previously addressed under Emergency Management Director - Pam Brownell.

4. Weems EMS Grant: Weems is seeking Board approval for what has been referred to as the EMS "Baby" grant. The \$813 grant amount, with an additional \$58.66 from last year's grant, will be used to send one paramedic to a Critical Care Paramedicine program.

On motion by Commissioner Boldt, seconded by Commissioner Ward, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board authorized the Chairman's signature on the Resolution for the State of Florida EMS \$813 Grant. Motion carried 4-0.

5. Tax Collector Budget Option: After every election of a new or re-elected tax collector, the Florida Department of Revenue (DOR) offers the tax collector the option of becoming/ remaining a budget or fee officer for the next four years. The Franklin County Tax Collector has always been a budget officer, adhering to the budget policies and procedures of the BOCC, and Mr. Watson would like to remain a budget officer. In order to keep the budget officer status, DOR requires a resolution with the Chairman's signature.

RESOLUTION

FRANKLIN COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

WHEREAS, Section 145.022, Florida Statutes provides that the Board of County Commissioners, with the concurrence of the Franklin County Tax Collector as provided for in said section, shall by resolution guarantee and appropriate a salary to the Franklin County Tax Collector in and amount not to exceed that specified in said chapter, and

WHEREAS, the Franklin County Tax Collector has requested and concurred with the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners that said Tax Collector be placed on a salary as provided in said Section, and

WHEREAS, the said Tax Collector will pay all fees collected by said office to the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners as provided in said as provided in said Section.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That the Board of County Commissioners of Franklin County, Florida, pays the Franklin County Tax Collector a guaranteed salary as provided for in Section 145.022, Florida Statutes.

2. That said board will provide funds according to the budget as submitted by said Tax Collector and approved by the Board, which will include each and every item of expenditure necessary to operate said office, including the salary of the Franklin County Tax Collector.

3. That said Board would pay over said funds to the Tax Collector as provided by law or upon monthly requisition.

4. That a copy of this resolution be filed with the Florida Department of Banking, the Florida Department of Revenue and the Auditor General.

THIS RESOLUTION ADOPTED by the Franklin County Board of County.

Franklin County Board of County Commissioners Franklin County, Florida

> <u>/s/Ricky Jones</u> Ricky Jones, Chairman

/s/Rick Watson

Rick Watson, Tax Collector

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board authorized the Chairman's signature on the DOR Resolution to keep the Tax Collector as a budget officer. Motion carried 4-0.

6. Sheriff's 911 Grants: Due to pending deadlines, the Sheriff's Office asked the Chairman to sign two 911 grant agreements prior to today's meeting. The first is the annual maintenance grant totaling \$34,366.21 and the second is a GIS Data Support grant totaling \$188,270.

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Parrish, and by unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board ratified the Chairman's signature on both grant agreements. Motion carried 4-0.

7. CareerSource Agreements: As stated in Mrs. Kim Bodine's attached cover letter, "Local workforce development areas that receive an initial designation by the Governor may be granted a subsequent designation if, for the most two recent program years, the local area performed successfully and sustained fiscal integrity, and in the case of a local area in a planning region, met the regional planning requirements as described in WIOA Sec. 106. The chief elected official must submit a request for subsequent designation (Attachment A) to CareerSource Florida and DEO every two years beginning July 1, 2017. The application to request subsequent designation is due by April 15 of the renewal year." Attached is the Application for Subsequent Local Workforce Development Area Designation, the Local Workforce Development Area Designation for the Chairman's signature. Even though these are standard documents signed by the Board every two years, if the Board authorizes the Chairman's signature it will be contingent on Attorney Shuler's review of the documents.

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by a unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board authorized the Chairman's signature on the CareerSource documents contingent on Attorney Shuler's review and approval. Motion carried 4-0.

8. CARES Act Funds Extension Letter: During Ms. Traci Buzbee's report, the need for the County to request an extension of the agreement (Agreement Y2314) between Franklin County Board of County Commissioners and the Florida Division of Emergency Management for the CARES Act funding beyond the January 29<u>th</u>deadline was addressed. This extension allowed Ms. Buzbee to submit a revised spend plan on Friday, February 5<u>th</u>. Chairman Jones signed the extension request.

Item previously addressed under CARES Act Consultant -- Traci Buzbee - Update.

9. Building Inspector Status: In December Mr. Steve Paterson received his Florida State Building Inspector certification. That was one of the main reasons Mr. Garry Millender was able to request to change his employment status as the County's Building Official from an employee to a contractor. When the Board approved that change, I should have requested an increase in Mr. Patterson's base annual salary to \$40,000 since, with his certification, his role and responsibility in the Building Department would increase. The Building Department's budget is fee based, not funded from ad valorem taxes.

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by unanimous vote of the Board present, the Board authorized the increase in Mr. Paterson's salary to \$40,000 as the County's Building Inspector. Motion carried 4-0.

Commissioner Jones inquired about Mr. Paterson obtaining his state credential as a County building official, Mr. Moron stated the review board is behind due to Covid and he is hopeful it should be completed by April.

B. Informational Items

1. Airport Project Time Extension: Last week, John Collins (AVCON) informed me that the Runway 6-24 Lighting Rehabilitation project contractor, TCA Electrical Construction, requested a 90-day extension of the project time due to delays in receiving materials from suppliers because of COVID. FDOT will extend this grant which is set to expire on April 30<u>th</u> if the contractor is impacted by COVID, therefore, I authorized Mr. Collins to request this extension. I will update the Board on the outcome of the extension request.

2. Building Department New Hires: Until further notice the Building Department will be closed to the public (walk-ins & phone calls) on Fridays at 12 noon to allow staff to process permit applications. Hopefully, with our new hires starting this month, Mr. Chance White started yesterday, and Ms. Tanicia Pugh will start on February 15th, we will be in better shape by month's end.

3. CDBG Report: Attached to the agenda packet is an information report from Mrs. Deborah Belcher. If you have any questions regarding the report, Mrs. Belcher asked that you give her a call.

4. ARPC Meeting Notes: Attached to my report are the January 2021 Board Notes for the Apalachee Regional Planning Council.

5. COVID-19 LSE: The Chairman has signed, as authorized by the Board, COVID-19 Local State of Emergency Declarations for the weeks starting January 4<u>th</u>, 11<u>th</u>, 18<u>th</u>, and 25<u>th</u>.

6. ANERR Burn: The Apalachicola National Estuarine Research Reserve is planning a burn at the Nick's Hole section of property within the St. George Island Plantation on Thursday, February 4<u>th</u> at 9 am ET. A total of 50 acres will be burned. A map is attached.

County Attorney - Michael Shuler - Report

Attorney Shuler had no action items and noted he updated the Board via email regarding several informational matters.

Commissioner Ward noted that the County may need to look into code enforcement and uninhabitable properties, noting two properties that were damaged in Hurricane Michael that the owners have not torn down. Commissioner Ward will get with Attorney Shuler regarding sending a letter to the property owners. Attorney Shuler recommended sending the building inspector over to access, and then report back to him.

Commissioners' Comments

Chairman Jones and Commissioner Boldt shared the same sentiment as Commissioner Ward regarding the need for code enforcement. Commissioner Parrish cautioned Board on setting rules that will ultimately have to be enforced. Mr. Moron suggested we identify the problems and create solutions or codes to remedy them. Chairman Jones said the Board would need to set policy based on the needs of the community without overreaching their authority.

<u>Adjournment</u>

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 11:57 a.m.

Ricky Jones – Chairman

Attest:

Michele Maxwell – Clerk of Courts